Preliminary Measurement of the Velocity of Light

Professor A. A. Michelson

A New Type of Electric Discharge: Dr. Irving Langmuir

The Racial Origin of Almshouse Paupers: Professor Raymond Pearl

Romyn Beck Hough: Professor William Trelease

Scientific Events:

The International Geographical Congress; Exhibition of the American Association at Washington; Meeting of the American Statistical Association; Munsell Research Assistantships in Colorimetry; National Research Fellowships

Scientific Notes and News

University and Educational Notes

Discussion and Correspondence:


Quotations:

Scientific Research

Scientific Books:

Bose on the Physiology of Photosynthesis: Dr. H. A. Speer

Laboratory Apparatus and Methods:

Photomicrography of the Skin Capillaries: Dr. Charles Sheard

Special Articles:

The Circulatory System of the Brine Shrimp: Professor Charles W. Greene. The Reproductive Cycle of the Characeae: Professor Albert H. Tuttle

Plasticity Symposium

The Illuminating Engineering Society

Science News

SCIENCE: A Weekly Journal devoted to the Advancement of Science, edited by J. McKeen Cattell and published every Friday by

THE SCIENCE PRESS

Lancaster, Pa. Garrison, N. Y.

New York City: Grand Central Terminal.

Annual Subscription, $6.00. Single Copies, 15 Cts.

SCIENCE is the official organ of the American Association for the Advancement of Science. Information regarding membership in the association may be secured from the office of the permanent secretary, in the Smithsonian Institution Building, Washington, D. C.

Entered as second-class matter July 18, 1923, at the Post Office at Lancaster, Pa., under the Act of March 3, 1879.

PRELIMINARY MEASUREMENT OF THE VELOCITY OF LIGHT

The velocity of light is one of the most fundamental of the constants of nature, and this alone would justify the attempt to measure its value with the highest possible precision. But in addition to its scientific importance it may prove to have a practical value if the result of such a measurement can be obtained with sufficient accuracy.

The mean of the various measurements thus far attempted is 186,330 miles per second, with an uncertainty of 20 or 30 miles. If this uncertainty can be reduced to one mile, the result could be utilized to obtain distances between stations from 50 to 100 miles apart far more expeditiously and with an order of accuracy at least as great as that obtainable by the usual method of triangulation. Indeed, there are possibilities of utilizing the velocity of light in cases where triangulation would be difficult or impossible.

An invitation tendered by Dr. G. E. Hale, then director of the Mt. Wilson Observatory, and supported by Dr. J. C. Merriam, director of the Carnegie Institution, made it possible to install the necessary apparatus on Mt. Wilson, with Mt. San Antonio 22 miles away as the distant station, during the summer of 1923; but smoke and haze from burning oil and from forest fires made it impossible even to test the feasibility of the method at so great a distance.

This was accomplished during the past summer with very promising results. The set-up of apparatus involved several important changes in the arrangement employed in previous investigations, the most important of these consisting in the substitution of an octagonal revolving mirror instead of a plane-parallel, together with a system of reflectors which eliminated all direct and diffuse extraneous light. Finally, a simple method for returning the light from the distant station back to the source was substituted for the plane mirror used for this purpose in previous work, and this functioned so well that no readjustment was required during the entire two months of the work.

The advantage of the octagonal revolving mirror, in addition to the higher speed obtainable, lies in the possibility of receiving the return light on a succeeding face, thus eliminating the measurement of the angular deflection of the returned beam; or rather

1 Presented at the Centenary Celebration of the Franklin Institute, Philadelphia, September 17–19, 1924.
Science 60 (1557), x-414.